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THORNTON. 

The name Thornton is said to have been deri\·ed from T~or, the a~ci~nt 
northern deity. ·- A· different origin, however,· is. suggested by the coats of -arms 
of two of the oldest Thornton fainil-ies -of. England, the· Tho:rntons of York and 
the Thorntons of Tiersall, which bear upon them three hawthorn trees or bushes, 
which suggest the combination of the words "thorn'' and '' town." 

The name DE THoR~TO); also appears in the early annaJs, indicating a 

Norman ancestry. Thornton in Gaelic was ~1acSkenaghan or ~facSceinaghan, 
from sceine, a knife. · 

There are numerous fan1ilies of ·rho"rntons in the lTnited States. One of 
the earliest Thornton h11migrants to America was \Y1LLIAlI 'I'HOR~To~, who 
came from Yorkshire, Eng1and, prior to 1646, and settled in York county, \'ir­
ginia. This William Tho_rnton was the ancestQr of a large number of ·prominent 
descendan~s, some of whoin became connected by_ marriage with the family. of 
President George Washington, and son1e with the family of President Zachary 
Taylor. Dr. John H. F. Thornton, who married Mary, daughter of President 
William Henry Harrison, was probably of this family. 

Another early immigrant to An1erica was JoHN 1''HoR~TON, who was one of 
the founders of the First Baptist church of Newport, R. I., in 1648. . 

REv. THOMAS THORNTON, who came from E!Jgland in 1663, and settled at 
·v annouth, Mass., was the ancestor of descendants of eminence. 

JA~tES THORNTON, father of Hon. Matthe_w Thornton, one of the signers of 
the Declaration of Independence, emigrated from Ireland to America in ~718. 

There were other rfhornton families who settled in i\Ias~achusetts, Con­
necticut, New York, Pennsylvania and \Tirginia. 



THE _FAMILY OF JAMES THORNTON. 

'fhe -earliest history of this family is ·in a manuscript- by Hon. George C. 
Clyde, grandson of Col. Samuel Clyde, of Cherry Valley, N. Y., who married 
C~therine \\"asson, niece of Hon. Ivlatthew Thornton. 1,his l\tISS. is in the 
possession of Dr.James D. Clyde, of _Cherry _Valley, and _the _following i$ an 
extract -therefrom : 

" ·Col. Clyde's·· mother's name was· Esther Ran_ki~. · · His wife:s name was 
Catherine. \\·asson. She was a niece of -M·ATTHE\'V THORNTON, one- of the signers 
of the l)eclaration of Independence, and was born in Leicester, ~Iass., in the 
town of \Yorcester, in 17 3 j ._ Her family was originally ENGLISH, but emigrated 
to the north of Ireland. Her mother's name was AGNES THORNTON, and her 
mother was XAscv S:\IITH, who, with her husband, J . .\::\IES 1'HORNTON, was in 
the siege of Londonderry, in 1689, "·hen it \\·as besieged by King James and 
relieved. b'.V tT1e P"i-fr1ce ""of Orange. -,rhe)~ Ii \·ed -on a far~ about a mile fro'rn the 

city, and were subject to frequent visits from King James' troopers. On one 
occasi-011 a party of n1arauders, among whom was· a trooper \\·ho had been a 
hired servant tq l\fr. -·rhomton, rode up to their house, and throwing the bridle 
of his horse to l\Ir. Thornton, told him to walk him ·up and down while they got 
some refreshments. l\fr■- ·rhornton was quite indignant, but did not dare to 
refuse. \\"hen the trooper mounted again he told Thornton in a whisper that 

.he had saved his life, and had done it only as a protection to him. On another 
occasion a party who paid them a visit said to ?virs. Thornton, ' The sugar 
plums fro1n Derry are plenty today,' n1eaning the balls from the cannon which 
were playing upon them. ' Yes,' she said, ' and· I hope you may get some of 
them before the day is over.' Her husband told her afterwards he expected her 
reply would_ ha\~e cost her her life. She came to this country with her husband, 
and ].\,[rs. Clyde ·said she was a very handsome woman, and ·would knit an·d tell 
stories all day long when she was so old she could do ~o other work.'' 

According to the Clyde ~ISS. Jan1es 1,hornton, father of Hon. l\iiatt~ew 
and of Agnes 'fhornton, was living with his wife near Londoi:iderry, Ireland, in 
1689, but it is e\·ident that in handing down the family tradition a generation 
was on1itted, as James, father of Hon. ~·Iatthew Thornton, was not more than 
five years of age in 1689, which is shown by the record on his gravestone in 
:Forest Hill cemetery, East perry, N. H., which states that he-died on Novem­
ber 7th, 17 54, in the 70th year of his age. It will be assumed, therefore, that 
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the James Thornton and N' ancy Smith, his ,,:ife~ who are referred to in the Clyae 
~fSS. as living near Londonderry, Ireland," in 1689, were the grandparents of 
Hon. ~1atthew 1,hornton. 

'fl1e Clyde l\ISS. states that the T~1orntons li:ved on _a farm about a mile 
from the city of Lo~donderry at .the time of the sitge, and that they were sub­
ject to frequent visits fro1n the troopers. of King James. The Clyde farm was 
on Carn Hill, which is about a n1ile from the city of Londonderry, on the road 
to Lin.iavady, and at the time of the siege Sir X. O'Xeil's dragoons were statiqned 
o~ the easterly bank of the River Foyle, near Carn liill. It seems probable, 

. . 
therefore, that the farm of the ·rhorntons was on or near Carn Hill, 1n some 
location which was protected from the '' sugar plun1s ·· fro1n Derry. 

The Clyde manuscript is authority for the following facts: 

1. That the Thornton family ~,·as of English origin. . 

2. 'rhat the Thornton family emigrated to· the north of Ireland, and that 
James Thorntoh and Nancy Smith, his wife, were living on a farm about ~ mile 
from ·Londonderry at the time of the siege, in 1689. 

3. 1"hat James Thornton and Nancy Sn1ith, his wife, e1nigrated to 
America. 

The place of origin in England of this branch of the Thornton family is 
unknown. 

Several families of Thor.ntons e1nigratcd from England to Ireland, among 
them the THORNTONS OF GRE~VILLE," who emigrated in the reign of James I. 
and settl_ed in Londonderry. A member of this family, Robert Thornton, was 
mayor of Londonderry at the breaking out of the rebellion of 1641. He and 
others of his family purchased property in Londonderry and elsewhere fro1n the 
London co111panies. \Villiam Thornton, son of \\"iliiam 1"hornton of Benthan1, 
Yorkshire county, England, settled in 1\Iuff, near Londonderry, Ireland. O'Hart 
states that in the reign of .Elizabeth about 100,000 acres in the County Lin1erick 
were confiscated and divided among English families, among who111 were Thorn­
tons. 

Nothing is known in regard to James rfhornton and Nancy Smith, his wife, 
beyond what is stated in the Clyde ~ISS. Their son James2 was born 1n or 
about 1684, his birthplace being unknown. 

James~ Thornton had eight children: 1. James. 2. Andrew. 3. Mat­
thew. 4 •• 1-\gnes. 5. \Villian1. 6. Samuel. 7. Hannah. 8. Esther. Of 
these children ~'latthew was born in Ireland, probably near Londonderry, in 
1714. 
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rf'he 1~hornton family is said to have b~en among the I 20 families who: in 
five small ships, arrived in Boston, l\'Iassachusetts, on August 5, 17 18, and in 
the fall of that year to have gone to Falmouth (now Portland, l\Iaine), whert: 
they spent the winter on shipboard, enduring great hardships.. They then went 
to \Yiscasset; l\Iaine, and after a stay there of a few years the}'-- moved to \Yor­
cester, Massachusetts. In \Vorcester the Thorntons lived on a farm near T'act­
knuck Hill, adjoining the town of Leicester. The only record that has been 
fou-nd· of the \,·ife of James Thornton is th~ deed of the \Vorcester farm, :-dated 
February 14, 1739-46, in ~hich "Ketiran,., Thornton'· joins. 1--n ·1.740, James2 

Thornton moved from \Vorcester to Pelham, l\f~sachusetts~ of which town 
he W~S one of the founders and principal proprietors. He remained in Pelham~ 
where he held various town offices, until 17 48, when he move~· to Londonderry~ 
New Hampshire, where he resided until his death on November 7, 1754. He 
is buried in Forest ~ills cemetery, East Derry, N. H., beside his· daughter~ 
Hannah. \Vallace. 

Of the eight children of Jan1es2 Thornton descendants to all but the first 
two ~ave been traced. All that is known of James and Andrew is that they 
were co-grantees · ,vi-th their brother, Hon. Matthew~ in 1768, . of · the town of 
Thornton, N. H., which \Vas named in honor of Hon. Matthew Thornton. 

. . . 

The most prominent member of the Thornton. family was Hon. l\,Iatthew 
Thornton,_ son of James:! 1,hornton. He settled in New Hampshire, ·where 
he became distingu~shed as a_ p~ysician, judge, statesman and patriot in· the 
Revolution. He was one of the signers of the Declaration of Independence for 
the State of New Hampshire, and the history of his life is to- be found an1ong 
the Lives.of the Signers. He died on June 24, 1803, and is buried at Thorn­
ton's Ferry, N. H., where a monument to his memory was erected in 1892 by 
the State of New Hampshire._ 
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DESCENDANTS OF HON. MATTHEW THORNTON. 

HoN. !\fATTHEW 1·HoRNTON married, about 1760, Hannah _Jack, of Ches­
ter, N. H. She died Dece1nber 5, 1786, and he died June 24, 1803. Both are 
buried at Thornton's Ferry, N. H. '"fheir children, born at Londonderry, N. H., 
were as follows: 1. James, b. 1763. 2. Andrew, b. 1766. 3; Mary. -4. Hap­
nah. · 5. l\Iatthe\\·, born 1770. 

HAN~AH JACK. who, at the age of 18, was married to Hon. l\'Iatthew 
Thornton, was the daughter of Andrew Jack, who settled near Jack Hill, in 
Chester, N. H., ·at soine time prior to 1747, when his name appears upon the 
Presbytt:rian records as \Varden. The Jack. family came originally from Scot­
land, where the name is to be found in the early records of the parishes of 
Glasgo\V, Lanark and Edinburgh. 1·he family of Andrew Jack emigrated from 
Scotland to Londonderry, Ireland~ · The church register of the parish of Ten1-
plen1ore, Londonderry, shows the baptism, on June 1 1, 17 13, of a son, Thon1a_s, 
to Andrew Jack and Ellener, his wife. 'l.,his Andrew Jack may have been the 
father of, the Andrew Jack who emigrated to Amer~ca and ~ho married MARY .. . .. 
MORRISON, born in Ireland ~bout 17 18. Her ancestor" John Morrison, was 

born in the county of Aberdeen, Scotland, about 1 628, and e1nigrated to Ireland 
previous to 1688, where he resided at or near Londonderry. He and his family 
were· among the Scotch Protestants who, during the siege of Londonderry, were 
by the.inhuman order of General de Rosen, driven beneath the walls of the city, 
\Vhere they suffered fron1 starvation, and were exposed to the fire of both be­
siegers and besieged. The ·l\'Iorrisons survived and were admitted into the city. 

Andre,v Jack and ~Iary Morri_son had· four children: Two sons, Andre,v 
and Samuel, and two ~aughters, one of who1n, HANNAH, born about 17 42, be­
came the wife of Hon. l\latthew 'fhornton in 1· 760. 
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DESCENDANTS 

OF THE CHILDREN OF HON. MATTHEW THORNTON. 

I. 

Descendants of James Thornton. 

J:A:'.IES 'reoR~-ro~, b. 1763, residt:d in :\Ierrimack, N. H., and beca1ne a 
1nember of the .. New Hampshire Legislature.- He married l\t:ary· Parker, of 
Litchfield, N. H.. and they had four children: · 1. l\.latthew. 2. Hannah. 
3. l\'Iary .. 4. Ja1nes Buonaparte. James Thornton died in 1817, and is buried 
at Thornton's .Ferry, N. H. 

HA~NAH, daughter of James Thornton, 1narried CoL. JOSEPH GREELEY: of 
Nashua, N. H. They had seven children: 1.· ~Iary Thornton. 
Thornton. 3. Sarah. 4. Charles .A. 5. James B. 6. Edward P. 
Dana. 

:2. J9seph 
7. Helen 

Gen. Jan1es B. Gree1ey became a physician; sen.·ed in the Civil \Var; n1ar­
ried ArabeHa llcGaw \\"ood, and lived at Thornton's Ferry, N. H., on the farm 
formerly the homestead of Hon. l\fatthew Thornton. 

JAlIES BUONAPARTE THOR:STON married Sophia Shepard, of Connecticut. 
They had two children : 1. J atnes Shepard. 2. l\1ary P. They resided in 
Merrimack,-N. H. James B. Thornton was a 111ember of the New Hampshire 
Legislature; Speaker of the N. H. House of Representatives in 1829 and 1830; 
Second Comptroller of the U. S. Treasury; Charge d'Affaires at Callao, Peru, 
in 1836. Died 1838, and is buried at 1'hornton'5 Ferry; N. H. 

MARY P. THOR~To~, daughter of HQn. James B. Thornton, 111arried Dr. 
Charles Da,·is, and their son, Charles Thornton Davis, is a Judge of the Court 
of Land Registration in Boston, l\Iass. 

}AllES SH£PARD THORNTON, son of ~on. James B. Thornton, attained dis­
tinction in the U. S. Na\·y, and the following sketch of his life was written by 
Judge Charles ·rhornton Davis. 

"James Shepard Thornton had a very distinguished career in the United 
States Navy. His name and memory ha,·e been perpetuated by the Department 
in the U. S. torpedo boat ' 1"'hornton,' and stories and traditions about h in1 as 
one of the fan1ous fighters of the .Navy are still current in the service. 

" He was a man of singular quickness, both of thought and action~ cool 
and determined in time of danger; extremely thorough in professional prepara-
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tion ; an~ wh~l.ly devoi~ o_f_ p~ysi.~_al ~ ft:;~.r~ Tht;s~ _q1:,1~Ft~_t:s, c.o_n~bined ~~itl~ ~ 
powerful physique and robust health. made hitn. a formidable fighter, and it was 
his fortune· to see an unusual amount of activc::: and dangerous sc:::rvice. He was 
a stern disci1>linarian, one of the n1ost severe in the Navy, but very popular with 
his men. In private life he was an affectionate, even-tempered and warn1-
hearted friend, and a jo\·ial companion. He had quick_ appreciation of the 
merits of others, unswerving loyalty to· his friends,.his superiors, and the service, 
and great personal modesty. 

" He was · born in the Thorntou ho1nestead at "fhornton 's Ferry, . N ~w­
Hampshire, Fe:bruary 25, 1827. His father· died while he was very _young, 
leaving him to the care and guardianship of Franklin Pierce and. Senator . .\ther­
ton. By the latter he was appointed a 111idship1nan in the Navy on January 15, 
1841. 

"In 1845, while at l~o111e on his first leave, he gave the first publ_ic c:vidence 
of that indifference to physical danger, which was often criticized as reckless­
ness, but from which he ne\·er suffered disaster. Finding the house of a poor 
won1an in Nashua on fire, and the volunteer fire department engaged in moving 
out the effects instead of atte1npting to save the house; Midshipman 'l'hornton 
led in a volunteer force of fire fighters, and soon emerged from the conflict 
triumphant, but with all the hair burned off his head. 

. . . . . 

"In 1846 he was sent to the Naval .Academy, and in 1847 to sea as past-
mi~shi_pn1an, where he _had the great advantage of active service in the_ :\lexican 
war. 

"In 1850 he went to the Pacific on coast survey work. \Vhile there, being 
unjustly insulted and humiliated by a superior officer, from whom he was unable 
to obtain redress, he pron1ptly resigned from the Navy, and then seeking out his 
former superior officer~ administered to hi"rn such a public castigation that the 
offending officer was shortly forced to leave the service. 

"From 1850 to 1854 young Thornton "·as engaged in sur\"eying the gold 
fields of California and in what is now Utah, but in February, 1854, being re­
stored to his old rank a1nong his classmates. he re-joined the service and went at 
once to sea, serving in the Brazils, where he had been as a midshipman during 
the Mexican war. \Vhile in the Brazils he exhibited his courage by several 
ti1nes refusing to fight duels. One duel, however, he was forced into, and was 
slightly wounded after having himself fired into the air. He was never chal­
lenged again. 

"At the outbreak of the Civil \Var he was transferred to Ad1niral Farragut's 
flagship, the Hartford, and was her -executive officer during the f~mous passage 
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of the for.ts when Farragut was lashed in _the-rigging. .-\fter the battle ;F"arra;:ut 
stated to bis flag lieutenant that he had ne,·er set:n a more efficient officer in 
action than 'fhornton. . 'The sc_heme of covering the sides of the sl;lip with chains 
was 1"hornton~s invention~ for which he received high praise from :Farragut. 

" In 1862 he )\'as _.com1nissioned Lieutenant Commander, and given com­
mand of the \Vinona, off ~Iobile. \Yhile in this command he made a small boat 
recon.naissancc::: under a hea\·y ti-re from Fort Gaines, sounding the various ap­
proaches to the fort and gathering infonnation of the.gr~atest value. For this 
exploit the Navy Department caused _a torpedo boat to be named _for l}im. 
Later, he cut out a rebel steamer from under the gans o_f l;-ort i\:lorgan in total 
disregard of the signals of his .flag officer not to risk the engagement. He de~ 
clined to see the signals, believing his ship to be in such position that he was 
justified in disregarding orders frotn a distance, and when his conduct was re­
ported on complaint to A.d1niral Farragut, he received unqualified commen­
dation. 

" I,n Deceinber, 1862, he was assigned to the Kearsarge as executive pfficer 
at the beginning of her cruise in search of the Alaba1na.· Just before the battle, 
'fhornton wrote ho1ne that he had his ship and crew in such a state of efficiency 
that they could fight an action without officers. N"evertheless, when the fight 
actua1ly took place Thornton went from gun to gun steadying the crews and 
occasionally aiming and firing the guns. Captain \Vinslow _ was very hearty in 
his praise of the serdces of his executh-·e officer during the battle. 1'o the 
accuracy of her own fire \\·as largely due the victory of the Kearsarge, and the 
accuracy of that fire was attributed both by her commanding officer and by her 
crew as due to a great extent to the efficiency of her· executive officer. In this 
battle Thornton repeated his Hartford manreuver of protecting the vital parts of 
the ship with chains, a manceu\·er which the English naval officers of that day, 
as well as Admiral Farragut of the old, and Captain l\Iahan of the new, An1eri­
can Navy, characterized as of the highest professional merit. 

"After the battle there were some unworthy efforts 1nade to create jealousv 
~ 

and trouble between C~ptain \Yinslow and his executive officer, but the efforts 
failed. Thornton always remained unswervedly loyal to his commanding officer, 
who assumed all the burden of possible defeat and whom he held entitled to the 
full credit of the victory. \Yinslow, on his part, was prompt and generous in 
his praise of Thornt9n's skill and sen·ices, and when the officers of the Kear­
sarge met their first public wdcome on their n:turn, \Vinslow entered the banquet 
hall arm in arm with his executive officer. After the battle Thornton received 
three superb jewelJed swords_ of honor fron1 the grateful marine underwriters 
and boards of trade of Philadelphia, San :Francisco and Boston. 
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,a For distinguished .service in the action with the Alaba1na, "fhornton was 
advanced several numbers in his grade, and giveu co1nmand of the Kearsarge. 

"Fro1n 1865 to 1873 he was stationed at the Portsn1outh Navy Yard, and 
in August, 18-73, w:as sent in command of the U. S. s_ 'Monongahela' to Ker­
guelen Island with the transit of Venus -expedition. The only available charts 
for this dang.erous voyage were the original charts 1nade by Captain Cook, which 
were placed at. 'I'hornton's disposal by the British government. He accom­
plished.;his -difficult n1ission successfully, but upon the return voyage, -while 
studying· his copy of the Cook chart in his cabin, he was thrown down ·by a 
sudden lurch ·of the ship and received serious injuries to the spine. He was .at 
once invalidated home, but died on May 14, 1875, at Germantown, Pen~syl­
vania, within a few weeks after his arrival. 

"He married; in 185_7, his cousin, Ellen 'fhornton 
markable beauty as Wt!ll as of gr~at dignity of character~ 
arid Mrs." Thornton died ·in ·1\-'Iay~ 1·901··. 

Wood, a w01nan of re­
'fhey had no childre~, 

"James Shepard 'fhornton was the last of his name of the descendants of 
Hon. Matthew Thornton." 

II. 

ANDREW 'fHORNTON, son of Hon. Matthew 1 .. hornton, born 1 766. 

[Descendants not traced.] 

III. 

MARY 'rHoRN'To~, daughter of Hon. l\ilatthew Thornton, marri~d I-Ion. 
Silas Betton, of Sale1n, N. H. They had seven children: 1. \\~ealthy J. z, 
Harriet. 3. Caro1ine. 4. 'f'hornton.· 5. Charles C. P. 6. Mary J. 7. Georgt 
0. George E. Betton, a lawyer o"f Boston, l\.fass., Thornton Betton, a lawyer of 
Derry, N. H., and :\latthew 'fhornton Betton, of Portsmouth, N. H., were de­
scendants. 'fhe burial plot of the Betton family is in Forest Hills cemetery, 
East Derry, N~ H. 

IV. 

HANNAH l'HoRxToN, daughter of Hon. l\Iatthew .. fhornton, married John 
1\lcGaw of Bedford, N. H. John McGaw was son of Jacob ?wfcGaw, of Scotch 
descent, ,vho emigrated from Lineygloss, in the north of Ireland, where he was 
born in 1737, to .-\1nerica, where he .settled in Bedford, N. H., and married 
l\.fargaret Orr. 

John l\lcGaw and Hannah Thornton had three children : r. Thornton. 
2. John Andrew. 3. Harriet Frances. 

Hannah Thornton McGaw died in 1846, and is buried at Mt. Auburn, 
Cambridge, l\if ass. 
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I. 

'TH~RNTo:s l\tlcG.\w was born at Newburyport, !\lass., July 24, 1799; n1ove<l 
to Bedford, N. H., in 1805 ; 1irepared for college at Pinkerton Academy, Lon­
donderry ; graduated at Dartmouth College in r 8zo, among the first seven in a 
class of twenty-four; studied ·1aw with his uncle, Jacob 1\-IcGaw of Bangor, J.\,le .. 
where he-commenced th~ practice of law in 1824. He married Anne :Frances, 
daughter of Joseph Carr of Bangor, on October 19, .1826. Child, .A.miie '1."born­
to11. .He died October 5, 1859, at Bangor, l\Ie., and is buried· at 1\-lt. Auburn 
cemet-ery, Cambridge, l\Iass. 

At a meeting of the Penobscot County Bar, held on Oct.~6, :1.859, resolutions 
were adopted expressive of appreciation of the 1ne1nory of the honorablt! profes­
sion~! character of Thornton ~IcGaw, as a counselor of the courts, of his in­
tegrity as a man, and of his social and generous qualities as a co111 pan ion and 
fri~nd. The death of rl'hornton l\1cGaw was announced to the court by Judge 
Hath~way, and the announ~en1eut was responded to by Judge Appleton, who 
said i~ · part : 

"I first knew l\tlr . .i\IcGaw in the prime and vigor of life, after he had co1n-
1nenced his professional career., and when by his skill in the management of 
affairs, by his accurate learning and ability, he had obtained a large and exten­
sive practice. \Yith the advantage which a Hberal ·education confers, thoroughly 
read in the la,v, acquainted equally with its technicalities as with its n1ore liberal 
and general principles; of unquestioned integrity, he soon acquired an eminent 
position in his profession. His habitual caution an<l prudence, his strong sense 
and legal acquire1nents, were all displayed in the sagacity of his professional 
ad\·ice and in the wisdom of his judgment. !::iuccessful in early life in the acqui­
sition of an estate amply abundant, he soon exchanged the harassing cares and 
the annoying perplexities of forensic for the 1nore congenial p1easures of social 
life, which his independent rueans penuitted him to enjoy, and where his vigor­
ous inteJlect, his liberal culture, his infinite wit and hurnor, 1nade him one of the 
most attractive as well as one of the n1ost instructive of coinpanions." 

ANNIE 1'HoR~TON ~IcGA w~ daughter of Thornton l\IcGaw, was born at 
Bangor, Maine, on January 26, 1828, and was 1narried in 1855 to Charles \V. 
Adams, who \Vas born in Rochester, N. H. 

ADAMS FAMILY. 

The ancestor of this fa1nily was HENRY ... .\DA:\IS. of Braintree, (Quincy) 
l\t[ass. He came from England, and is said to have arrived in Boston, Mass., 
with his wife, eight sons and a daughter, in 1632 or 1633. Charles I., in 1629, 
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granted 40 acres of land in l\Iassachusetts . to Thomas _-\dams, \\"ho ·was an .. .\1-
derm·an, High Sheriff and Lord :\Iayor of London. It is said that He~ry Adan1s 
was a brother of Tho1nas~ and took up the latter's grant. President John Adan1s 
erected a 111onument to the memory of Henry .-\dams 111 the old churchyard at 
Quincy, with the following inscription : 

"-In memory of Henry _-\.da1ns, who took his .flight. fronl the. Dragon perSt.. .... 
cution i11 Devonshire, England, and alighted ,Yith eight sons near lvit. \Vollas­
ton. One of the sons· n::turned to England, and. after taking time to explore the 
country, fo.ur removed. to ~.Iedµe)d and two to Cheln1sford. One only, JosEPH, 
,vho lies here at his left hand, remained here:-an -original _proprietor in the·town­
ship of Braintree." 

· · President John Quincy .\dan1s dissented fro1n his father·s opinion that 
Henry .. -\.dams came fro1n .De\ronshire~ and gave- his opinion that Braintree, 
E-~- county, England, was the place of origin~ 'fhis- opinion seems. to have 
been based. largely· on the fact that Braintree, l\Iass... was. settled by Hooker's 
com-pany,. which was- made up fron1 .Hraintr.e~, Chcln1sford_ a_pd other villag~. of 
~county,. England.· 

JOS£.Pa:: ADA:.\I~, \\"ho,. in. the epitaph to Henry _\d:a1ns, is. referred to as. he 
"who lies here at his left hand .. an original proprietor in the. township of Brain­
tree,'' was born in England in .1626~ and was n1arried in Braintree, Ivlass., in 
1650, to Abigail Ba.xter. They bad twehre children, the second of whom, bon1 
in 1654, was ~~so na_med JosEPH;;. . He· was a selecunan in Braintree, and served 
in the war with the Indians in 1676. Samuel Ada1ns. the Patriot, was descended 
from Joseph~ .-\da1ns, through his son, Capt. J <:>hn .:-\dams. 

Joseph 3 ..-\dan1s was married three . tin1es. By his second wife, Hannah 
. Bass, he had ten children, the tirst of whom, nan1ed Jo:-;-.i:-;PH~ was born in 1688, 
graduated fro111 Harvard College in 1 7 r o, 'l.'as ordained a n1inister, a_nd settled 
at Newington, N. H., in Ii 15, where he re1uained as pastor for 66 years. John 
A.dams, second President of the United States, was a son of I)eacon John 
Adams, brother of Rev. Joseph .-\ dams. 

Re,r. Joseph .-\.da111s \\"as 1narried twice, and by his rirst wife, Elizabeth 
Knight (Janvrin), had fiv~ children. the fourth of whon1. BENJA:'.\HN, b. 1728. 

was a justice of_ the peace and selectman in ~ewington, and delegate to the con­
vention which adopted the Federal Constitution. Ben jan1in .. .1:a.dams married 
Abigail Pickering, and had eight children, the first of who111 was J A.MES, b. I 7 5 2, 

who became a selectman in Rochester, :N". H. James _-\dams 1narried ~Iary 
Cole, and had six children, the first, Bi::~J .-\:\JIX, b. about 1779. Benjamin 
Adams married Elizabeth Horne, and had six children~ the youngest of who1n 

was CHARLES \V1LLIAM, b. 1813, at Rochester, N. H. 
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The child~t:n of Charles Willia1n Ada111s and Annie Thornton !vlcGaw were 
Charles rrhornton Ada~ns, H3:rvard ... .t\. B., a lawyer in New York, and Helen 
Lee of N ~rtham pton, Mass. 

n. 
JO!:fN AN~REW l\lcGA\V, son of John and Hannah rfbornton l\lcGaw, ht:-

' , . 

came a prosperous shipping merchant in the city of New York. He married 
Nancy Goffe, of Bedford, N. H., and they had four children : 1. Harriet Ann. 
2. Hannah 1,hornton. 3. Helen. 4. Frances Eliza. 

HARRrET ANN l\lcGA\V married Freen1an P. '\Voodbury, a merchant in tbe 
city of New York. rfheir children were: 1. Joh·o McGaw. 2. Gordon. · 3. 
Thornton. 4 .. Helen. 

JOHN ~fcGA\V \VoonnuRv graduated fro.m Princeton College in 1879, also 
from the College of Physicians and Surgeons in the city of New York; served 
as major on the staff of General \Vilson in the Spanish-A1nerican war, and has 
held the office of Street Cleaning Commissioner of the city of New York under 
both Republican and Democratic administrations. 

GoRDON \VoODBURY graduated fro111 Harvard College, becan1e a lawyer in 
the city of New York. afterwards in Manchester, N. H. Is proprietor of the 
Manchester Dai/a· li1in11. -· 

THORNTON \VooDBURY graduated from Harvard Co11ege, and is connected 
with the New York S1t11. 

HELEN \Voonnu.Rv married Dr. \Villiam S. Sea1nans, Harvard A. B., oue 
of the examining physicians of the Equitable Life Insurance Company in the 
~ity of New York. 

HANNAH rfHoRNTON McGAW married Rev. Henry Fenn, Yale A. B., and 
resides in Portland, Maine. 

HELEN l\:lcGA\V married Fle1ning Smith, Esq., and reside~ _in New York 
city. 

FRANCES ELIZA !\fcGAw married Charles H. Woodbury, Dartmouth A. B., 
a lawyer of the city of New York. 

111. 

HARRIET FRANCES l\lcGAw, daughter of John and Hannah rrhornton ].\lc­

Gaw, married Rev. Henry \Vood, a graduate of Dartmouth College.. He was 
editor of the CongregatitJltlll Jo1trnal; was appointed Consul to Beyrout, Syria, 
by President Pierce, and lived there many years. He was appointed chaplain 
in the U. S. Navy, and stationed at Philadelphia, Pa. Their children were: 
1. John Thornton. 2. Ellen Francis. 3. Arabella McGaw. 4. Harriet H. 
5. Elizabeth. 6. Henrietta. 7. Catharine Perley. 8. Charles. 9. Robert 
McGaw. 
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V . . . 
MA·n·HEW ""l"'f:JORNTON, son of Hon .. l\fatt11ew· Thornton-, ·graduated from 

Dartmouth College in 1797, and became a lawyer in New Hampshire. He 
married Fanny Curtis of Amherst, N. H., and their children were: 1. Abigail 
Curtis. 2. Hannah Jack. Matthew 1,hornton died in 1804. 



DESCENDANTS OF AGNES THORN.TON WASSON. 

AGNES THoR~ToN· ,,-As~oN, sister of Hon. J\fatthew Thornton, had a 
daughter, Catherine, born in.Leicester, !\-lass ..... J\pril 28, 1737. Agnes 1'horn­
ton's husband is believed to haye ·been Thon1as \Vasson or \Vason~ who, with his 
brother James, came from County Antrim, Ireland, to A1nerica in 1736. ·rhe 
Wasson family came originally from the north of E·ngland. . 'fhomas \\Tasson set­
tled in ·chester, X. H . ., prior to July, 17_38. · He had a son Thomas, ,vho is 
thought to ha\·e been the Thomas \Vasson who served in the \Var of the. Revo­
hition as captain, 5th company, :?cl regiinent, Schenectady (N. Y.) di't1ision. 
John Thornton, son of Hon. ~Iatthew·s brother \Villiam, served as 1st lieutenant 
in this company. Catherine· \Vasson had several brothers, and '".fhomton and 
John \Vason, who were grantees. of Orford, N. H., in 1761, were probably two 
of them .. It is also probable that George \Yasson, who married Agnes S1,11Iivan, 
and haa eight ·children (the youngest, Ja111es Duane, born at Duanesburg, N. Y., 
. . 

on April 24, 1792) was also a brother of Catherine's. 
'fhe fan1ily of Agnes Thornton \Yasson were among the early settlers of the 

New;. York frontier, where their home was at Amsterdam. Catherine \Yasson 
was n~arried1 in ·1761, at Schenectady, N. Y., to Capt. Samuel .Clyde. 

CLYDE OR CLOYD FAMILY. 

This family was of Scotch origin. The name Clyde or Cloyd appears fre­
quently in the early records of the parishes of Glasgow and Lanark. Fan1ily 
tradition has it that three brothers named Clvde left Scotland on account of ., 

religious troubles and settled in the north of Ireland. The subsidy and hearth 
rolls of _Londonderry, Ireland, show that there were in Glendermott parish! in 
1662, one Jo. Cloyd; in Ballykelly, a James Cloyd; in Kearne or Carn, a JoHx 
CLYDE, in 1663 ; in Drumboe, a Munyon Clyde, and in Glasteele, a Rohen 
Clide. Tradition in Ireland is that some of the family·-of John ·Clyde of Carn 
emigrated to Ainerica. John Clyde, ,vhose farm was on Carn Hill, near Lon­
donderry, was probably the_ grandfather of DA:s-rtL CLYDE, who -emigrated to 
-An1erica fron1 Londonderry about 1732, and settled in that part of Londonderry, 
New Ha1npshire, · \vhich is now known as \Vindham. This Daniel Clyde is said 
to have been born in 1683. He had a brother Michael (b. 1710) who settled 
in East Allen, Penna. Daniel Clyde 1narried Esther, daughter of Hugh Ran­
kin, an emigrant fron1 County Antrim, Ireland, to Londonderry, N. H. Esther 



Ra~kin was born in I 706 ; ,vas· a won1an of worth and of a strong religious 
character. They bad n.ine children, five of whom were born in Ireland, viz.: 
1. Joseph, b~ r722. 2. Hugh~ b. 1724. 3. John, b. 1826. 4. Daniel. b. 1 i 2S. 

5. Ann, b. 173.0._ 6. SA)IUEL, b .. April 11, 1832, in \Vindhan1, N. H. 7. ~Iary! 
b. 1735. 8. Nancy, b~ 1740. 9. Agnes. b. 1744. 

Daniel Clyde. was a selectmal) in \Yindhan1 in 17 47. He died on June 4~ 
1 753· 

It is not known when SA:\IUEL CLYDE left \Vindham and settled in Xew 
York, but it \\'as probably shortly after the-·death of his-father,- Daniel. 

By a commission, dated at Albany, N. Y., on May 25, 1758, under the 
band of Samuel James Abei:-cromby, San1uel C1yde ,vas appointed captain of a 
company of Rangers. 

In 1762, Samuel Clyde and his wife moved to C·herry Valley, N. Y., ,~here 
they lived for ten years on the James Ritchie farm, which was the place of birth 
of their four eldest daughters· and of their son 1\-latthew. 1n 1768, Samuel Clyde 
purchased a farm about ·one mile fron1 the viflage of Cherry Valley, the title to 
which farin has e~rer since remained in too family, ·the present O\\Ftler being Dr. 
James D; Clyde. 

~th Colonel Clyde and his wife bore prominent parts in the Revolution. 
They and their eight children were survivors of the massacre of Cherry ''aHey 
in 1778. 

After the dest~uction of Cherry Valley Colonel Clyde mo\·ed with his fan1ily 
to Canajoharie, where they resided until spring with a Mr. Van Alstyne. l'hey 
then ·went to Curry's Bush, near Princetown, N. Y., where they lhred with some 
relations (Thorntons) until 1783, when peace was declared. rl'he Thorntons 
referred to were the sons of \\"illiam Thornton, of wbom l\Iajor John Thornton 
\Vas one. Colonel Clyde and his family returned to Cherry ,:r alley in 1784. 
He was appointed Sheriff of ~Iontgomery county, which office he held untii his 
death on November 30, 1890. Catherine \Vasson Clyde died on l\·Iay 31, 1824. 

The children. of Colonel San1uel Clyde and of Catherine \Vasson, his wife. 
born between 1762 and 1778, were as follows: 1. Agnes. 2. 1·\nn. 3. Jennie. 
4. Catherine. 5. ~[atthew. 6. George. 7. Joseph. 8. Esther. Of these 
children Agnes and Jennie n1arried members of the Schermerhorn family, and 
Catherine married :\-Iajor Lester Holt. Their descendants have not been 
traced. 

MA TTHE\V CLYDE married Jane Clark. They resided in Cherry Valley ancl 
lledina, N. Y. Their children were: 1. Melinda. 2. Samuel. 3. Steuben. 
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4. \\'illiam. 5. 1,hornton. 6. Joseph. 7 ~ . Kez~ah. 8. Jane. 9. Esther. 
Thornton Clyde· had two sons who.were ki11ed in the Civil \-Var: Alvin, 121st 

N. Y. Vols., killed at Chancellorsville, aged 21 ; Arthur, 90th N. Y. Vols., died 
at Key \Vest, aged 1 9. 

STEUBEN CLYDE married Susan Sherman. 1"hey resided at Maine~ X. Y., 
and bad eleven children, born betw~en 1826 and 1847. Of these, A.lfred served 
in the Civil \V~r in the 89th N. Y. Infantry, and in the soth N. Y. Engineers~ 

GEORGE CLYDE, son of Colonel Samuel Clyde, married M-artha Campbell, 
and residt:!d at Cherry Valley, N. Y. They had four children: 1. George 
Cli11ton, b. 1802. 2. Jefferson Newton. 3. Lafayette. 4. Albert nl" .. ·b. r820. 
George Clyde died in 1847. 

CAMPBELL FAMILY. 

l\'L-\_J<THA CAMPJ;ELI., wife of George Clyde, was descended from Colonel 
\Vil Ham Campbell, who moved from Campbelltown, Aigyleshire, Scotland, to 
Ireland, about 1685. He had two sons, James, born ·at Londonderry, Ireland, 
in 1690, and Samuel, born ~n 1695. 'fhese. sons, with their f~milies, moved to 
A1nerica in· 1 728, landing at Roston, Mass.~ where they remained until 17 33. 
when they settled in Londonderry, N. H. In 1741, James Campbell went to 
Cherry Valley! N. Y. His first wife, married in Ireland, was Jane Humphrey. 
They had six children, the eldest of whon1, John, born in Ireland, married Elinor 
Ramsey, and they had two children: 1. John, Jr.· 2.· Eleanor. Eleanor Camp­
bell n1arried Captain Samuel Campbell (probably her cousin), and had ten chil­
dren, all-of ':·horn she outlived, attaining the age of 88. Two of Eleanor Camp­
~ll's daughters, l\Iartha and ~1argaret, n1arried George Clyde and Joseph Clyde, 
his brother. 

Eleanor Campbell was 24 years old at the time of the destruction of Cherry 
Valley in 1778, and she and her father's family were taken prisoners by the In­
dians, but with the other women and children she was sent back by Brandt, 
after a capti¥ity of three days. 

HoN. GEORGE CLI~TON CLYDE, son of George Clyde and l\tlartha Can1p­
bel1, his wife, married, in 1829, Catherine Dorr. He was admitted to the_bar 
of the State of New -York in 1824; located at Burlington, N. Y.; County Clerk 
in 1835 ; mo\·ed to Chatham, Columbia county, N. Y., in i-839; Judge Court of 
Common Pleas and me1nber N. Y. Constitutional Convention of 1846; returned 
to Cherry Valley, N. Y., in ;1852, and died in 1868. He had no children, but 
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adopted the children of his brother Lafayette. He was the writer of the manua. 
script account of the life of Colonel Sa1nuel Clyde, in which the early history of 
the rfhornton family is referred to. 

LAFAYETTE CLvD_E, son of George Clyde, married Frances A. Crafts, a 
descendant of Gov. Bradford of Plymouth, Mass. 1'heir children were: 1. 

Frances E., b. 1841. 2. James D., b. 1843. 

JAMES D. CLYDE, son of Lafayette Clyde, is a physician at Cherry Valley, 
N. Y. He left college in 1861, at the age of 18, and enlisted as a private in the. 
U. S. army; was afterwards comm~ssioned 1st lieutenant and captain~ was 
made prisoner and kept so for ten months·, a part of the time at Charleston, S. 
C., under fire of U. S. guns; discharged in 1865 ; graduated in 1867 -from Col­
lege of Physicians and Surgeons in the city of New York. Dr. Clyde owns and 
resides on the farm near Cherry Valley, which was purchased in 1768 by Colonel 
Samuel Clyde, and the ownership of which has been kept in the family ever 
since. 

ALBERT \V. CLYDE, son_ of George Clyde and Martha Campbell, his wife, 
married Fatima Flint. They had ten children, born betwee11 1840 and 1865: 
1.- ?Ylargaret A. 2. l\Iartha E. 3. Eugene A. 4. Edward L. 5. George C. 
6. Jefferson \V. 7. George C. 8. Fannie V. 9. Kittie D. 10. Frank D. 

EDWARD L. CLYDE enlisted in Co. D, 46th regt., N. Y. Vols., August 1, 

1864. 

JOSEPH CLYDE, son of Colonel Samuel Clyde, married Margaret Can1pbell. 
Their children, born between 1804 and 1824, were:· 1. · Samuel Adams. 2 • . 
Louisa !\!aria. 3. De\Vitt Clinton. 4. Eleanor Campbell. 5. Joseph Henry. 
6. Julie Lucretia. 7. John \V ells. 

SAMUEL ADAMS CLYDE married Elizabeth Fern. Their children, born be­
tween 1843 and 1853, were: x. Arthur \Villiam. 2. Louisa E. 3. Jefferson 
Fem. 4. Sarah E. 

ARTHUR \V. CLYDE served in Co. K, 27th Iowa Vol. Infantry, from Au­
gust, 1862, to August, 1865. For more than twelve years he has been States' 
Attorney of l\ilclntosh county, North Dakota. 

JEFFERSON FERN CLYDE was a member of the Iowa State Senate in 1890. 
In .1896 he was elected Judge of the District Court of Iowa, and re-elected in 
1900. He is a graduate of the Collegiate and Law depart1uents of the State 
University of Iowa, and a member of the Phi Beta Kappa Society. 

3 
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WILLIAM THORNTON AND HIS DESCENDANTS . 
. 

WILLIAM THOR.NTox, brother of Hon. J.\,Iatthew Thornton, \Vas, · with his 
father, James, one of the first settlers of Pelhan1, l\fass., in 17 40, and as a sur­
veyor he assisted in laying~ out" that town. In 17 44 he left Pelhan1 and n1oved 
to Kingsfield (nO\\" Palmer), l\fass., where ~e had a farm on the east side of 
Dumplin Hill. Here his sons, \Villiam (1745), l\Iatthe,v (1746) and James were 
probably born. In J\-Iarch, 17 48, \Villiam sold his farm at Palmer, and became 
die first settler of Dublin, N. H., which town was granted ~n 1749 to Hon. l\lat­
thew Thornton and others. 'The farm in Dublin on which \Yilliam Thornton 
settled was owned by_ Hon. l\Iatthew Thornton, and was subsequently so-ld by 
hiin to Dea. Isaac Appleton. A s_mall monument has been erected on this farm 
to mark the place of the first settlement of the town. 'l'wo children were born 
to \Villiam Thornton during his residence in Dubliq, a d~ughter, l\Iolly, in 17 49, 
said to have been the first white child born in that town, and a son, Tho111as, 
born probably ·in 1751. \Villiam 1'hornton ren1ained in Dublin until about 
1753, when he left on account of the Indians, and with his family moved to 
Schenectady, N. Y., where his son John was born in 17 53. 

\Villiatn 'I"hornton and his sons, ?viatthew and James, served in the border 
w1rfare, their names appearing on the muster roll of Capt. Daniel Campbell's 
company of Schenectady, on ~Iay 12, 1767. 

From a deed dated Feb. 3, 1770., it appears that \Villiam Thornton was 
then of Curry's Brook (or JJush), near Princetown, Albany county, N". Y. He 
returned to New Hampshire, and after livi~g in Londonderry in· 17j3 and· 1774 
he went to Thornton, N. H., where he remained until his death in 1790. 

I. 

\VILLIA::\I2 THORNTON, born 17 45, married Dolly Bagley of Candia, N. H., 
and resided at Thornton, N. H. They had seven children, born between 1784 
and 1799, viz.: 1. \Villiam3

• 2. John. 3. Polly. 4. Matthew. 5. Nathan. 
6. Hannah. 7. J arnes. 

,YILLIA.l\13 THORNTON, b. 1784, was a selectman, tax collector and justice 

of the peace in 1,hornton, N. H. His first wife was Mary Bagley, and they had 
eight children, born between 1806 and 1820, viz.: 1. Lucinda. 2. Cc::rcno. 
3. l\Iilton. 4. Free1nan. 5. Cynthia. 6. Lavina. 7. Washington. 8. Lena. 
His second wife was Harriet Elliot, and they had nine children, born between 
1824 and 1840, viz.: 1. \Villiam". 2. l\tiartha. 3. 1\-lary Esther. 4. Harriet. 
5. E1ueline. 6. \Villiam5

• 7. Hannah D. 8. Edn1und Elliot. 9. Henry H. 
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W1LLIA'M5 T.HORNTON, b. 1832, married Emma E. _Keniston of Campton, 
N. H., and their son, George K., is roadmaster ·of ·the _Boston and l\Iaine~rail­
road at Sale~, ·1Iass. 

EDMUND ELLIOT THORXTON enlisted at l\Iound City, Kansas, in 1861, in 
th~ U. S. army as 1st lieutenant; was made captain October 29, 1861; mus­
tered out September 29, 186 5 ; Co. G, 7th Kansas regt. 

HENRY H. TiroR~"'To~ enlisted in Co. H, 1-5.th _N. H. re_gt. at Concord, 
N. H., Oct. i5, 1862 ; wounded at Port Hudson _l\Iay _27, 1863; discharged 
Aug. 13, 1863. 

JOHN THORNTON, son of \Villiam2 Thornton ·-and ;Dolly B~ley, -married 
Sarah Lunt, and resided in Derby, Vt. They had three children, born between 
1821 and 1826, of whom John·, b. 1823, iuoved t<;)_:.Stanstead, Canada, in 1840; . . . . . .. .. , 

thence to Barnston, P. Q. (1841"'.'1855)-; t9en~~- .to,:C~oaticook, where he_ resided 
until his death in 1888. He represented the countyof-Stanstead -in the Queb_ec 
Legislature for eight years. Descendants live in .Barnston and- other. parts of 
Canada. 

MArrHE\V THOR~To~, .son -of ,~:illiatn:! "T.bornton .. and Dol~y ~ll::}gley, en­
listed Feb. 23, 1813, in Capt. Joseph :Fiander's _co1npa1~y (N. lL), -·and-served 
z81 days. He married Esther Banker, .and ·they · had --six . child-ren, whose de­
scendants live in l\Iichigan, Kansas and other wt::stern states. 

NATHAN THORNTO~. son of \Yilliam2 Thornton and Dolly Bagley, n1arried 
Olive Edgerly of Peeling.(\Yoodstock), N. l-I. f-Ie died ·in 1860. 

JAl\tES THORNTON, son of \Yilliam2 1'hornton arid DoUy· Bagley, married 
Rachel True of \Ventworth, N. H. They had six children, whose descendants 
live in Hatley, P. Q., Canada. 

II. 

CAPT. ilATTHE\V THORNTON was the second child of \\.,illian1 rfhornton. 
He was born on December 6, 17 46, undoubtedl}7 at Palmer, ~lassachusetts, 
where his father then lived. He was probably with his father when the latter 
became the first settler of Dublin, N. H., about 17 48, and n1oved with him to 
Schenectady, N. Y., in 1153. 

The nan1es of \Yilliam "Thornenton "and of James and l\Iatthew Thornton 
appear on the muster roll of Capt. Daniel Can1pbell's company of Schenectady, 
on May 12, 1767. 

~latthew Thornton was married on 1\-Iarch 30, 1768, to 1\-Iary Crawford, 
and their first child, Dorcas, born March 12, 1770, was baptized at Schenec­
tady, N. Y., on June 12, 1770. 
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. In 1·772, Matthew returned to New Hampshire and- settled in the tOW:R of 
Thornton. Three more children ,vere bom to :l\fatthew in. New Hampshire, 
viz.: Jose~h, on l\Iay 9, r.772; Cathrine in 1773, and Leah, on March 9, 1774. 

. Matthew was elected a delegate from the town o~ Thornton · to· the Third 
Provincial Congress of New Hampshire, which met at·Exeter on April 21, 1775. 
He was a1so returned as a delegate from the .towns of . Thornton and Holder­
ness, to·the Fourth Provincial Congress, which met at Exeter o.n May 17, ·1775. 
On June 23, ·177 5, he was recommended by David Hobart and- others o~ Ply­
mouth -to the Committee of Safety as a fit person to enlist. a company.· 

On· July 4, 177 5, he was a_dded to the committee for bringing in a p-Jan for 
regulating the militia. 

On July 6, 1775, he was recommended as lieutenant of a company which 
Capt. James Osgood was authorized to enlist. 

He enlisted a company, the roll of which set forth in Vol. I 7, St. Papers, 
p. 14. See also Vo1. 14, St. Papers, p. 166. This company of 43 men formed 
the major part of Capt. James Osgood's company, of which Capt. 1\-Iatthew 
Thornton wa~ 1st lieutenant. He served in that capacity under Col. Tin1oth y 
Bedell in the expeditio_n against Canada. 

In a letter dated August 7, 1775, by Matthew Thornton, chairman of ·the 
Committee of Safety, to Col. Iledell, in which Capt. Thornton is 1nentioned as 
the bearer thereof, it is said that he also bears a letter from Gen. Sullivan, and 
is requested to take Capt. Thornton with hin1 to Gen. Schuyler at Crown Point 
and endeavor to get the three companies, of which Gen. Osgood's was one, into 
the Continental service. The three companies marched from Haverhill, N. H., 
about Sept. 8, 1775, and on Nov. 2, 1775, captured Fort St. John, and took 600 
prisoners and ·munitions of war. · 

:Matthew Thornton's tern1 of enlistment having expired, he was discharged 
Dec. 2 I, I 7 7 5 • 

On Feb. 3, 1776, the Committee of Safety gave directions to pay off Lieut. 
Thornton's company, and on Feb. 10, 1776, it ordered the ·Treasmer to pay 
Capt. l\latthew Thornton his wages and rations, 18£ 19s 2d. · 

On April 4, 1776, his daughter, Jane Livermore, .was born at Thornton, 
N. H. . 

On June 30, 1776 he was appointed by the Pro~rincial Congress on a com­
mittee to take from the custody of Col. John Fenton, who "-as declared to be an 
enemy of his country, the files and records of the Court of Common Pleas of 
the county of Grafton. 

Matthew's sixth child, a daughter, Mary, was bom in Thornton in 1777. 
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On Sept. 30, 1777, Col. John Hurd, writing to the Committee of Safety 
from Haverhill, ~lass., advises them of his being present at Ply1nouth when 
Capt. Matthew "fhornton was arrested as a traitor. In this letter he says that 
at tbe battle of Bennington, which took place Aug. 16, 1777, Col. Charles John­
ston informed bim that Capt. Matthew 1"hornton ·was captured . with the Hes­
sians, inside the breastworks. Thornton claimed at this examination that he 
had been over to Otter Creek to see his land, and had been captured by the 
Hessians, who made him g~ with their army to assist in driving wagons, but 
that he did not bear anns, and that when he was captured he was taken with 
the waggoners. Col. Hurd adds that Ccl. Johnston assured him that -when 
Thornton was captured there was not a 1oagon ·near him. (He did not claitn to 
have been with the wagons.) "l"he result of the examination was adverse to 
Thornton, and he was sent to Exeter and confined in the jail in that place. 

On Nov. 7, 1778, the New Ha1npshire Legislature voted that ~{r. Thorn­
ton: brother to l\Iatthew Thornton, Jr., now in the prison at Exeter, be admitted 
to visit his said brother in prison, the prison keeper attending him. It does not 
appear which brother this was, bu_t it was probably \Villian1, who lived in Thorn­
ton, N. H. 

On Dec. 24, 1778, upon petition of Matthew ·rhornton, prisoner, to the 
General Assembly, he was granted the liberty of the prison yard upon giving 
bond in £ 2 oo, with two sureties. 

On April 3, 17 79, an act was passed for the trial of Matthe\V Thornton in 
the countv of Strafford. · ,_, 

June 3, 1779, a vote was passed "that Captain Ebenezer. \\'ebster be and 
hereby is directed to repair to Boscawen, or elsewhere, and. see what evidence he 
can procure against one Matthew '"fhornton, a State prisoner now in the jail at 
Exeter, for treason against this State and the United States, and 1uake return of 
his success to the House or the Committee of Safety of this State as soon as 
may be." 

On June 26, 1779, Capt. Ebenezer Webster was directed, in behalf of the 
State, to collect all the evidence that he could find against lV[atthew 1·hornton, a 
State prisoner, for treason against the United States, and have them before the 
Superior _Court for the county of Rockingham in July next. 

June 26, 1779, an act was passed repealing an act for the trial of Matthew 
Thornton in the county of Stafford and aut~orizing the Superior Court to try 
said Matthew rfhornton in the county of Rockingham. 

At the September term of the Superior Court of Judicature, held at Exeter 
on the first Tuesday of September, 1779, Matthew Thornton, of the town of 
Thornton, in the county of G~afton, gentleman, was indicted for traitorously 
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levying war and conspiring to levy war against the State of New Hampshire and 
the U. S. at a place called Bennington, on the 16th of August, 1777, to which 
indictm~nt he pleaded not guilty. Evidence was given both for and against the 
prisoner, and the jury found him NOT GUILTY; whereupon he was discharge~-

Under-.date of Jar.. 5, 1779, the following entry appears in the records of 
the Committee of Safety: 

"The Committee met and ordered one John Chandler, of Bo!:;cawen, to de­
iiver to l\.lary Thornton, wife of ~Iatthew Thornton, now in the Exeter jail, a 
sleigh belonging to the said Thornton, in his custody.'' 

Capt. l\latthew 1"hornton subsequently went to St. Andrews, Charlotte 
county, New Brunswick, where he settled ~t the Ledge. · 1"wo children were 
born to him in New Brunswick, a son, Matthew, and a daughter, Elizabeth, who 
were twins. 

Capt. Matthew Thornton died in 1824, and is buried at the Ledge, New 
Brunswick. 

DORCAS THORNTON, daughter of Capt. Matthew, married Kennedy, and 
died in 1838, without issue . . 

JOSEPH THORNTO:S-, son of Capt. l\.Iatthew, married Lydia Bailey, of Calais, 
Me. They had seven children: 1. \-Villiam. 2. Sarah. 3. Joseph. 4. Sarn­
uel. 5. Nathaniel. 6. Eli. 7. Abiel. Descendants are to be found in l\:Iaine. 

CATHERINE THORNTO!ll. daughter of Capt. Matthew, is said to-have mar­
ried a Young. 

LEAH THORNTON, daughter of Capt. Matthew, married Abiel Sprague, of 
Sprague } .. alls, Baileyville, l\{e. They had eight children : 1. l\{oses. 2. 

John. 3. Eli. 4. Jane. 5. Hannah. 6. Leah. 7. Sarah. 8. Rachel. 

JANE LIVERMORE THORNTON, daughter of Capt. Matthew, married Capt. 
Eli Sprague of l\Iachias, l\fe., and they resided at Sprague Falls, BaileyvilJe, 
Me. They had twelve children : I. Matthew rfhornton. 2. Elizabeth 1'horn­
ton. 3. Peris B. 4. Joseph Thornton. 5. John H. 6. Sophronia P. 7. 
Rebecca C. 8. Catherine Young. 9. Ezra C. ro. Eleazer B. 1 r. Ethan 
Allen. 12. Mary J. 

MARY THORNTON, daughter of Capt. Matthew, is said to have married a 
Frost. 

MATTHE\V THORNTON, son of Capt. Matthew, married Sarah Pon1eroy of 
Pomeroy Ridge, N. B. Their children were: 1. Matthew. 2. Mary E. 3. 
Benjamin. 4. Hannah. 5. Dorcas A.· 6. Almira J. 7. Edward. 8. Will­
iam. 9. Katherine. 10. James. 11. Priscilla A. 
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III. 

JAMES T'HORXTOY, b.-about 1747, probably at Paln1er, 1\1:ass., went ,vith 
his father's fa1nily to. Dublin, N. H., about 17 48, and mo,~ed with them _to 
Schenectady,_ N. Y., in 17 5_3. . 'fhe 1nuster roll of Capt. Daniel Can1pbell's com­
pany of Schenectady, :\Iay 12, 1767, gives the names of James r~'hornton and 
of his father and brother, l\·latthew. Ja1nes also served in the war of the Revo­
lution. in th.e 2d regiment, .Albany county. 

Pearson's'" G~nealogies of the First Settlers of Schenectady" gives the 
following record, which probably refers to the James Thornton above: 

James Thornton m. Antje Schermerhorn ... Children: 1. l\Iary, b. Sept. 9, 
1785. 2. \Villia1n, b. Feb. 17, 1793. 3. ~{argarieta, b. April 14, 1795. 

"fhere are probably descendants from this line in Schenectady, N. Y., but 
they have not been traced. 

IV. 

~'IOLLY THOR~TO~, daughter of \Villiam, brother of Hon. :!\Iatthew Thom·­
ton, born in Du~lin, N. H., about 17 49. DesceJ1dants, if any, have not been 
traced. 

V. 

THOMAS THORNTON, son of \Villiam Thornton, b. 17 5 1, probably in Dub­
lin, N. H. o{oved to Schenectady, N. Y., with his father, \Villiam, in 17 53. 
School teacher. Served in war of the Revolution in 2d reghnent, Albany 
county. He married Elizabeth Richardson, sister of Paris Richardson, aide to 
Gen. \Vashington. Their children were: 1. \Villiam. 2. Euretta. 3. Eliza­
beth. 4. John. 5. Thomas. 6. Charles \Vallace. 7. George. 

WILLIAM rfHORNTON married Eunice Stevens. They had chiidren : I. 

Asa. 2. Thomas \V. 3. ~Iatilda. 3. Elizabeth. 

THOllAS THOR~TON married, in 1816, Keziah \Vard. They resided in 
Duanesburgh and .Albany, N. Y. Their children were: 1. Eu:retta. 2. Eliza­
beth. 3. Hester. 4. \Villiam. 5. Stephen F. 6. l\Iatilda. 7. 1[ary. 8. 
Marshus. 9. Thon1as \V. 10. Lucinda. 

EURETTA "fHORN°tON married Henry J\ilix, of Albany, N. Y. She was noted 
as a philanthropist during the Civil \Var. 

ELIZABETH THORNTON married Benjamin Snyder,. of Bethlehem, N. Y. 
They bad seven children. 



HESTER THORYTON married Edmund J. Lord, of Albany, N. Y. They had 
five children. 

. . 

WILLIAM THORNTON married l\Iargaret Ferguson, of Brooklyn, and resided 
in Valparaiso, Ind. They had two children. 

STEPHEN F. 'fHoR~To~ married Katharine Varley, of Albany, N. Y. 
They had five childrt!n. 

LUCINDA 'fHoRNTO~ rnarried Nelson H. Salisbury, of Albany, N. Y. 'fhey 
had two children. 

. . . . ' 

CHARLES \VALLACE THoR~To~, son of Tho1nas, married Aln1ira Gaige, and 
lived ne~r Altamont, N. Y. They had seven children, born between 1823 and 
1843. 1. George. 2. Lydia. 3. l\laria L. 4. Thereon. 5. Euretta. 6. 
Charles \V. 7. Amanda. 

VI. 

JOHN THORYTON, son of \Villian1 l~hornton, was born at Schenectady, N. 
Y., in 17 53. He served with distinction in the war of the Revolution. He was 
1st lieutenant in Capt. Thomas \Vasson~s company (5th) in the :zd regiment, 
Schenectady division. His brothers, James and 1'ho1nas, served in the same 
regiment. Captain (and later l\Iajor) John Thornton served with Col. \Villett 
along the I\Iohawk valley, and as major he con1manded the· escort to General 
Washington and Governor Clinton from Fort Plain to Cherry Valley and Otsego 
Lake and return, during the summer of 1783. 

On January 25, 1786, 1Iajor Thornton purchased a farm of 100 acres at 
Curry's Bush (or Brook), in the to,,·n of Princetown, .Albany county, N. Y., 
which farm had been owned by Daniel Clyde, in-1771. 

Major 'fhornton married ... ..\.nn (Adelia) Clyde, daughter of Col. Samuel 
Clyd~. She was born October 25, I 764,, and her ancestry is set forth under the 
Agnes Thornton \Vasson branch. Their children were: 1. John Clyde, b. 
July 28·, 1793. 2. John Clyde, b. Nov. 24, 1795. 3. Adelia, b. Aug. 28, r797. 
4. \Villian1 Anderson, b. Aug. 29, 1802. 5. Catherine Agnes, b. Oct. 31, 1306. 

l[ajor Thornton sold his farm at Princetown on August 29., 1799, and 
probably moved from there to .Albany, N. Y., where his son, ,villiam A., was 
born. 

Major 'fhornton died on 1Iarch 22, 1819, and was buried at Schenectady, 
N. Y. His wife died on October 14, 1841. 

WILLIAM ANDERSO~ THOR!-:TOs-, b. 1802, in Albany, N. Y., graduated 
first in his class at \Yest Point;· entered U. S. army, engineer corps; served in 



Seminole Indian war in Florida; transferred to ordnance department, and sta­
tioned at Governor's Islarid, N. Y., \Vatertown arsenal, Mass., and \Vatervliet 
arsenal, N. Y .; was promoted to rank of Brigadier General. · 1-Ie inartied Helen 
Smith in 1833, and their children, born between 1834 and 1851, were: 1. 

Anna Clyde. 2. Helena de \Vitt. 3. Adelia. 4. \Villiam A. 5. Catheri"ne 
Clyde. 6. George de \Vitt. 7. Elenora. 8. Howard. 9. Julia. 10. John. 

Brigadier General \V. A. '"fhornton died at his ).JOSt on Governor's Island, 
N. Y., on April 6, 1866. 

ELENORA THORNTON married in r867, John Hugh Walsh, of Newburgh, 
N. Y.; residence, ",.fhorntonhurst," Great Barrington, Mass. 1"heir children, 
born between 1874 and 1889, were: 1. Ellen Beekman. 2. Willia1n Thorn­
ton. 3. Elizabeth de \Vitt. 4. Howard Thornton. 5. John Hugh. 6. George 
Radcliffe. 7. Nora Clyde. 

ELLEN BEEK~IAN \VALSH n1arried in 1903 Gurdon W. Gordon; residence, 
Springfield, l\,Iass. 

HOWARD THORNTON, son of \Yillian1 A. Thornton, is a lawyer at New­
burgh, N. Y. Former member of assembly of state of New Yorlc. 
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DESC.ENDANTS OF SAMUEL THORNTON. 

SAMUEL THOR~To~, brother of Hon. l\Iatthew Thornton, lived at Camp­
ton, N. H., and later at fiatley and Stanstead, in Canada. I-Ie is said to haYe 

married twice, and to have had 2 2 children, 1 1 by each wife. · By his second 
wife he had the following children: 1·. San1ueP\ b. 1775. 2. Reuben. 3. 
Sarah. 4. Abram. 5. Catharine. 6. Dorcas; b. 1779. 7. Eleanor. 8. \Yi11-
iam. 9 .. Sumner. 1 o. Hannah. 1 r. 

Samuel' married ( 1802) Catherine Baker, of Campton, N. H. She is said 
to have been related to Lord Chatha111 of England. 1"'heir children, born be­
tween 1805 and 1819, were : 1. I)a,·id. 2. Hannah. 3. \Villia1n. 4. Ches­
ter. 5. Sally. 6. l\Iatthew. 7. Samuel. 8. John. 

Samuer\ when 1 7 years of age, went to London, England. He adopted a 
syste~n of coking which g:1xe him great success among the iron n1asters near 
London. He returned to Amt=rica and settled in \Vheelock, Vt. 

DAVID THORNTO~ li,·ed in Campton, N. H. He married Lydia Clark, a·nd 
they had ten children, born between 1834 and 1855. 

HANNAH THOR~To~ married Shepard lviorse. They had six children, 
some of whon1 Jive in T'iverton, R. I. Hannah 1'hornton married (z) Jonas 
Hall. !\1rs. Charles N. Peckham of Fall River, l\Iass., is their daughter. 

WILLl~l\l THORNTu~ lived in Fall River, iVIass., and had three children. 

CHESTER 1"'HORNToN li\·ed in New Bedford, l\'Iass., and had five children. 

SALLY 1 .. H0RNT0N, known as " Sally the Preacher," built a church in 
Thornton, N. H., where she preached ; was a gifted speaker. 

SAl\lUEL 3 'l'HOR.NTO~ lived in Hard wick, Vt.; had eight children, one of 

whom, John C., lives in Dorchester, l\.lass. 

JOHN THORNTON married .~rvilla A. Sweetzer, and Jived in \Vheelock, \Tt. 

They had seven children: 1. Chester. 2. Eleanor. 3. Mary J. 4. Eliza A. 
5. Leonard. 6. John H. 7. Hollis. 

Chester Thornton was publisher of the" Family Journal of New York." 

Mary J. Thornton \Vait lives in Troy, N. Y. 

John H. Thornton lives in Bogata, N. J. 
DoRCAS, daughter of Sarnuel Thornton, b. 1779, married, 1802, John Dur­

gin, and had many descendants. (See Runnel's History of Sanbornton, N. H.) 



DESCENDANTS OF HANNAH THORNTON WALLACE. 

HANNAH THoR~TON, sister of Hon. l\latthew "'fhornton, b. 17 24, married 

\Villiam Wallace, of Londonderry, N. H. 

WALLACE FAMILY. 

This fan1ily was of Scotch origin. The ancestor was John \\"allace, wh~ 
ca1ne from Colen1ine, Ireland, to Londonderry, N. H., in 1719, and there n1ar­
ried Annis Barnet, in 172 1. 1 .. he Scotch records show that there was born in 
the parish of Glasgow, on Sept. 28, 1682, to Ja111es \Vallace and Agnes \\"ood, a 
son John. 'fhe John \Vallace, · who came to America in 1719, nan1ed his first 
son (b. 17 2 2) James, and it see1ns probable that the Glasgow record refers to 
the ancestor of this fa1nily. \Vil1iam \\"allace, son of John \Vallace and Annis 
Bamet,wasbornin 1725. He died in 1805. His wife died in 1814~and is 
buried beside her father, James 1~hornton, in Forest Hills cen1etery, at E. Derl'.y, 
N. H. 

Their children, born between 1754 and 1772, were: 1. l\1ary. 2. John. 
3. \Villia1n. 4. Catharine. 5. Jan1es. 6. Hannah. 7. Matthew. 

I. 

MARV \V ALLACE, b. 17 54, d. 175 6. 

II. 

JoHN WALLACE, b. 1757, married and settled in Thornton, N. H. Died 
about 1850, leaving a family. Descendants not traced. 

III. 

WILLIAM WA.LLACE, b. 17 58, settled at Niagara, Canada. prior to 1800, 
and remained there until 1812. \Vas a great friend of Joseph Brandt, chief of 
the Moha\vks. \Vith his brother James he owned 40,000 acres of land on Grand 
river. This was confiscated, and, deprived of all their property in Canada, the 
brothers came to the State of New York, where \Villiam finally settled in Roch­
ester. He married, in 1795, Anna Doudal. '"fheir children, born between 1798 
and 1811, were: 1. 1\-Iatthew Thornton. 2. Charity. 3. Hannah. 4. \Vill­
iatn H. 5. James J. 6. John \V. 7. Frances A. 
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IV. 

CATHARINE \VALLACE, daughter of Hannah Thornton \\"allace, n1arried 
Capt. Jaines Cox of Londonderry, N. ·H. 'fhey resided in Holderness, X. H. 
Their children, born between 1793 and 180-i, were : 1. \Yilliam \Vallace. 2. 

James. 3. l\Iary. 4. Hannah \Va·llace. 5. Leonard J. 6. Caroline. 

WILLI.~ll ,v ALLACE Cox married in 18 I 7 Hannah Kin1ba-IL rrhey resided 
in Holderness, N. H. 'I'heir children, born between 1819 and 1833, were: ~. 
\Villiam H. 2. Carleton A. 3. Edmund K. 4. Benja1nin F. 5. \Villiam \Y. 
6. Catharine . .\. 

EDllUNn K. Cox n1arried Nancy -D. :\Ierrill, and they had two children, 
one of whom, Ent"ma G., b. 185j, married Josiah H. Sargent of Plymouth, N. H. 

BENJAMIN F. Cox 1narried ... .i\.nn F. Currier, and their son, George B., was 
born in 1860. Residence, Laconia, N. H. 

JAMES Cox, son of Catharine \Vallace Cox, 
Residence, 1'hornton, N. H. 'fheir children, born 
were: 1. Ja1nes \V. 2. Susan E. 3. John ~l. 
6. A1nelia A. 7. Daniel \V. 8. James \\". 

married .A.nna E. Rogers. 
between 1824 and 1841,. 

4. Rac~el R. 5. l\Iary E. 

SusAN E. Cox 1uarried Leslie D. Scribner. Residence, Nashua, N. H. 
Their children, born between 1848 and 1870, were: 1. \\.illis G. 2. Lizzie J. 
3. Clara A. 4. NelJie E. 5. ~usan \V. 6. Josie l\I. 7. Olive L. 8. 
Harry M. 

MARY E. Cox, daughter of James Cox~ married Elisha Bassett. 
Brookline, l\Iass. Their children were : 1. Anna R., b. 1867. 
S., b. 1869. 

Residence, 
2. Isabel 

AMELIA A. Cox, daughter of James Cox. 111arried Le,·i \V. Fifield. Resi­
dence, Worcester, l\'Iass. Their children, born between 1858 and 1862, were: 
1. Annie Laurie. 2. l\Iary L. 3. Alice 11. 

ANNIE LAURIE FIFIELD married George \V. Knapp. Residence, Stone­
ham, Mass. Child, \Villiam Bruce, b. 1886. 

DANIEL \V. Cox, son of James Cox, married Emma P. Curry. Residence, 
Lakeport, N. H. Their.children, born bet\\·een 1867 and 1875, were: 1. John 
M. 2. Jessie E. 3. Grace E. 

JAMES \V. Cox, son of James Cox, married Josephine 1\-Iooney. Residence, 
Washington, D. C. Child, \Villis A., b. 1872. 



LEONARD_ J. Cox, son of-Catharine ,v .. Cox, ·m:nried. :·M·ary ·c1arit. .. -.R.esi­
dence, Holderness, ~- H. 'I'heir children, born between 1826 and 1844, were: 
1. Catherine \V. 2. Arthur C. 3. 3. Electa A. 4. Matilda J. 5. James L. 
·6. Lemuel M. 7. Charles P. 8. l\fary .~. 

V. 

JAMES WALLACE; b. 1763, resided in .Buffalo, N. Y., and died there in 1853 
without issu~. 

(See William \Vallace.] 

VI. 

HANNAH WALLACE, b. 1765, d. 1814; single. 

VII. 

MATTHEW \VALLACE, b. 1772, d. 1775. 



DESCENDANTS OF ESTHER THORNTON FERGUSON. 

EsTHER THOR~To~, sister of Hon. :\Iatthew Thornton, was married -at 
Pelham, Mass., on Dec. 4, 17 46, to James Ferguson. 

FERGUSON FAlIILY. 

This family was of Scotch origin, and emigrated to the north of Ireland, 
and from there to America. '£he earliest history of this famiiy is found in a 
written statement by John Ferguson, son ~f S1las of Springfield, N. Y., which· 
says that three unmarried brothers by the name of Ferguson came from Ireland 
and settled in Pelham, ~fass.; that two of them married with the Puritans of 
Pelham, and that the youngest, Samuel, went to Cherry Valley, N. Y., in 1755, 
and remained .unmarried. The two brothers who married the " Puritans " of 
Pelham were '\Villiam and James ; the former was married,, in 17 44, to Janet 
---, and the latter, in .17 46, to Esther Thornton. 

The history of Pelham shows that the Ferguson family \Vas prominent in 
the early history of that town. In the original deed of the town lands, made in 
1738-9, John Ferguson of Grafton, 1\-Iass., was grantee of one-sixtieth part. It 
seems probable that the three brothers, \Yilliam, James and Samuel, were sons 
of John Ferguson of Grafton. 'fhere was a Robert Ferguson who, in 1738, was 
of Grafton, and subsequently of Pelham, who was probably a brother of John 
of Grafton. There \Vas also a Samuel Ferguson of \Vestborough (near Grafton) 
in 1730, who is supposed to -have ·been -a brother of John ·of Grafton. rfhis 
Samuel was among the first settlers of Blandford, l\Iass:, where he died in 17 41, 

aged 48_, leaving six children, one of whoin was named JOHN. 

The records in Scotland show that in the parish of Glasgow there was born 
to John Ferguson and Janet l\filler, ·on Dece1nber 22, 1680, a son John, who 
may have been the John Ferguson of Grafton and Peiham, l\Iass. 

The first meetings of the proprietors of Pelham was held on August 6, 17 40, 
at the dwelling house of John Ferguson, which was in the· center of the town, 
next to the lot on which the meeting house was located, and town meetings were 
he]d there until 17 43. 

The -nan1es of John, \Vi11iam, Sarnuel, Robert and James Ferguson appear 
upon a protest dated .A.ugust 3 r, 17 43, against the caliing of Rev. Robert Aber~ 
crombie as minister, by ·the inhabitants of Pelham. 

JOHN FERGUSON was a selectmen and assessor of Pelham for many years, 
and in 17 5 6 he was elected treasurer, which office he held until 17 58, when a 
special town 1neeting was ca11ed to choose a town treasurer in place of John 
Ferguson,_" by reason of said FergusoQ's removal." 
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J~IIES FERGUSON. 

The ~ame of JAMES FERGUSON first appears in the records of Pelham, 
Mass., on the protest dated August 31, 1743, again_st the Rev. Robert Aber-
crombie. · 

He evidently served ·in the French and Indian war, as at a town meeting at 
Pelham on March 19, 1 j 4-6-7 it was '" \' oted that James Ferguson is freed from 
paying rata ye 17 4·6 for his being in ye war." 

He was chosen one of the surveyors of Pelham at the town meetings ip 
1755, 1756 and 1758. In 1759 he \\'as chosen one of the town cons.tables. 

In January, 1763, he was one of the protestants against the calling of 
Richard C. Graham as 1ni11 ister. 

He served in the war of t~e Revolution. A muste~ roll of the company 
under Capt. David Cowden in Col. Ben j. R. \\' oodbriclge's regiment to .Aug._ 1, 

1775, contains his name. 
In 17 79 he resided in Coleraine, 1\Iass., as is shown by a deed, in which 

his wife Esther joins, conveying I 00 acres in Pelham. 

The children of Esther 1'"hornton and James Ferguson, all of whom were 
born between 1747 and 17 54, were: 1. l\Iary. 2. Esther. 3. l\'Iargaret. 4. 
Hannah. 3. Robert. 6. A son. 

RoBERT FERGuso:--r married Jane Young in 1790. In 1796 he bought a 
farm in Cherry Valley, N. Y., the ownership of which still re1nains in the fa1nily. 
Their children, born between 1792 and 1812, were: 1. Hadassah. 2. Nancy. 
3. Fanny. 4. Thornton. 5:- James R. 6. John !\L 7. Elipha1et. 

NANCY FERGUSO~ was married in 1820 to David Scollard ·of Springfield, 
N. Y. They had seven children, born between 182 1 and 1841 : 1. Fanny 
McK. 2. John. 3. Da,·ison. 4. Elizab~th J. 5. James. 6. lfary. 7. 
\Villiam. Their descendants live in Springfield and ~lilford, N. Y .• and North 

Dakota. 
FANNY FERGUSO.N was married in 1827 to Jacob Sutphen of Cherry Valley, 

N. Y... They had six children, born between 1828 and 1839: 1. Jane. 2. 

Catharine. 3. James. 4. John. 5. Electa 1-1. 6. l\Iargaret J. 
JOHN SUTPHEN enlisted in the U. S. army Aug. 14, 1861, :n Rochester, 

N. Y. Private in Co. H. 3d N. Y. Vol. Cavalry; in battle Ball's Illu.ff (()ctober, 
1861); on picket duty in 1'°orth Carolina under Gen. Burnside; in fo11owing en­
gagen1ents in 1862 : \\"in chester~ Va., l\Iarch 1 ; 1'"rent Road, N. C., ~lay 15 ; 
Neuse Road, N. C., Aug. 20; Little \Yashington, Sept. 6; Jamestown Road, 
Sept. 23; near Tarboro, X. C., Nov. 3; Rollo l\fiJls, Nov. 7; R.eniston, Dec. 
14; \Vhite Hall, Dec. 16 ; Goldsborough, Dec. 17. In 1863 : Bottom's Bridge, 
Feb. 7 ; Stony Creek, Va., :\lay 7; Nottaway Bridge, l\,Iay 8; Chula Station, 
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June 2; Petersburgh, June 15 ; Stanton Bridge, Jane 25; Roanoke Rridge, 
June.26 ;· Rheams Station, June 29. \Vas captured in this fight, escaped same 
day, wand~red in woods for several days, finally reached · the Federal lines on 
July 1st. Discharged Aug. 29, 1864. Carried the cornpany guidon for two 
years. It is still in hi& possession, a worn and battered remnant. He was 
elected .supervisor of Monroe county, ~- Y., in 1900. 

THORNTON· FERGUSON was married in Pe1han1, ~.fass., on June 6, 1831, to 
Lavonia Peck. They resided in Springfield, N .. Y. -1~heir children, born be­
tween 1832 and 1850, ,vere: 1. Harriet. 2. Adeline. ·3. Jane. 4. Lyman 
P. 5. Henry Thornton. 6. Charles T.. 7. H~ward. 8. Edward G. 9. 
Imogene P. 10. Charlotte C. 1 I. Henrietta L. 

HENRY THOR:STON FERGi;so~ enlisted at Cherry Valley, N. Y., in Co. D, 
Berdan's Sharp Shooters, in 1861. Died Sept. 28, 1863, in Race St. Hospital, 
PhiJadel phi a. 

CHARLES T .. FERGUSON was 2d lieutenant in 121st regiment, N. Y. Vols., 
having enl-isted on Aug. 18~. 1862. . 

. ED\VARD s .. FERGUSON enlisted·a.t East Springfield, N~· y~;.-Oct .. 3,- 1863, in 
16th N. Y. Heavy Artillery, Co. C. Joined regiment at Y9rkto,~n, No, ... 5. On 
Nov. 8 was ~ttached to Battery L,. 4th U. S. Artillery. Served in. the _.\.rmy of 
the James under Gen. Butler, at liermuda Hundred, Fortress Monroe, Peters­
burg and Cold ~arbor. In hospital at \Villett's Point, L. I. . Returned to army 
in Noven1ber, 1864. April 3, 1865, at Richmond. Discharged Sept. 10, 1865. . . 
Resides Chicago, III. 

}Al\fES R. FERGUSON (son- of Robert) married (1) Eliza A. Rose of Spring­
field, N. Y. Their children were: 1. Elizabeth, b. 1839. 2. Eliza A., b. 184 r. 
He n1arried (2) Louisa A. BO\\·ker. Their children, born between 184-3 and 
1856, were: 1. Jan1es L. 2. Louisa J. 3. ~Iary C. 4. Sarah L. 5. Lucy 
M. 6. Robert \Vallace. 7. -Fannie Sutphen. · 

ELIZA A. FERGUSON resides at Richfield Springs, N.Y., and owns the farm at 
Cherry Valley which was purchased by her grandfather, Robert Ferguson, in 1j96. 

·JoHN M. FERGUSON (son of Robertj married Catharine Lawson. l'heir 
children, born between 1835 and 1844, were: I. Davison S. 2. Jean S. 3. 
Ruth IVI. 4. Andrew. .5. ~Iary C. Of these, Davison S. resided at South 
Walden. Vt., and was a member of the Vermont Legislature. Andrew enlisted 
in the 121st regiment,.N. Y. Vols., and died in Xovember, 1864, at Ft. Lincoin,1la. 

ELIPHALET FERGUSON (son of Robert) married l\fary E. Bryson of New 
York city, in 1842. Resided in South Bend, Ind., where his children were born, 
and later in De Soto, lVIo. T~eir children were: 1. Fannie ~I., b. 1852. 2. 

George B., born 1854. 
FANNIE M. FERGUSON married Robert J. Bricker. They resided in Car-

bondale, Ill. Their son, George S. Bricker, enlisted :Ofay 2, 1898, in the 4th 
Ill. regiment,_ and went to Cuba. !\-lustered out ~Iay 2, 1899. 



· Records :Crom 'hornton-~·lalrath 7ible --------
( Columbia Genter, C11 i o. ) 

A ~, r-rr. .:.. d · d J..h • 1 • -r-s a l'l .• . no'!2n ·..,on e-p2r~e 1..,_. _J. s 1 .... e 
of' Indepe.,dence, Cou.nty of' Cuyaho;;a-
1-!ar. 4- ,185'3. 

in the toi .... rnshin 
and State or Ohio, 

Co~delia. F. "x'.nornton 1-!'as 'horn Sept. 13,1829. 
(d.Oct.29,1901.) 

Mary Jane Thornton 
b.Apr. 8, 1830. 
( d. ~Tune Ii, lf-89. ) 
}·Iart-h~ A.nn i,~o~.,.,-n.:..on ,o .:::~ q · 1838. 

I -<A "" - ·- .i.J. - J. l., • • - :._., • \,) , 

Cathrine Z~orn~on 
was b. Jan.23, 1828. 
Departed this life l~e"':~. 28, 1e28. 

!1 • ~ i.:..arrie . ., 
b. l:..ur; • 

1:..me"i j_a ~orn~on 
3, 1845. -

Asa i-i~ Thornton ,;-res ~orn !:Lug. 4, 1804. 
Dorothy ~.-Jalra;_,h (11.is 1.-ri.fe) 1-1as b. June 15, 1807. 

i'To~e :.Asa 'l11'1.orn:..,on is 1 i sted in ~'T'ne :?amily of' 
James T'noz.,nton,fat!1er of Hon.l'Iattheiv rmornton, ?f 

by Uhas.mornt~on f_dar.is,:~.~[.C. 1905,pap;e 25, 
as the oldest son or :rra.S:hornton and ~unice Stevens. 




